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A W A R D  

Tbe Associadon grieves that Mr. Ed & Silva was wmghdly denid a promotion to 

the position of Supervisor - Freedom of Information pursuant to a job call and competitioa 

h is the Assodation's position that the grievor is reladvely equal in skill, ability and 

effideacy, rs compared with the successful applicant, and that he should therefore have 

been given tho @tion pursuant to Article 16.02 of the collect. agreement. Alternatively, 

it submirs that the gricvot was denied the position by the exercise of bad faith, based on his 

involvement, or potential involvement, in the aElairs of the Association The Police Services 

Board denies that tbwe was any bad faith shown towards Mr. dc Silva, and cubmi& that the 

provisions of Ardcle 16 of the collective agreement gwerning appointments and promotions 

were fully complied with, 

Ardcles 4.98 and 16:02 of the collective agreement, which gwern the disposition of 

this grievana, ptovidc as follows: 

4 a  There 6hall be no discrimination by the Board or the 
&miation against any member in respact of hqher 
employment because of his/hw membership or Pion- 
membmhip or activity or lack of acdvity in the Aosodation ' 

16:M Any member of the For# for whom such vacancy is  a 
promotion shall be entitled to apply for the position. In 
addition to any specific statutory requirements, the selection 
&dl be made on the badis of skill, ability and cmdency from 
maopt the applicants, and where such facton arc relatively 
equal, seniority ohatl gmm 

The pasition which is tbe subject of this grievance is among the most highly 
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rcmmxted in tbe bwgahing unit, being a sass 10 function. The call for applications to 

the poeition d Supctvirsor, Freedom of Information issued on March 29,1P93 and reads, in 

SupeNised D'wclosutw Analysts in the Reedom of Wonnation section of 
Records & Information and ensures prompt and efficient proassing of 
Freedom of Information requests Assists the Castdinator in providing 
assistance and/or intannation to Force management. 

SupvvLes the processing o f  Freedom of information requests by the 
Dtdonucs Anaiysts and ensures that tbc procedures and the limits 
mandated by the & ate adhered to. 

Rode6 guidance and interpretation of the Frtedam of 1- to 
Force personnel as quire& and acts as r Uafson to outside agenda. 

Assesses existing policies/proc&rcs to ensure compliance with the &. 
Monitors data collection and retention polides and acts as r W o n  to 
Internal Audit and Policing Standards to monitor Force compliance with the 
& 

M&ah r cuncnt knowledge of Infomation and Privacy 
Co~oner/Ontario Orders and trends in interpretation md application. 

Assku the Cbordinator and advises the Analysts in the preparation of 
submission concerning appeals and inquiries. 

Fmvidss trainiq to Analysts and staff as required. 
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Performs typical duties inherent to the job. 

Poet Secondary School diploma or degree in related field or equivalent 
cornbinatic#r of education, training and apericna. W l l e n t  keybarding 
sldlls requid. Bxperienct in supervising Force employes. An ma!ythl 
d u d  with proven verbal communicatioo rkills and excellent report writing 
skills requjrcd. Budget preparation experitnee preferable. Experience in 
interpretation and application of legislations and regulations prtferabIt. 
Experience in Freedom of Inlomution ~ t r a t i o n / d i s d o s u t e ~  work 
preferable, QualifyiDg period is one (1) year. 

As ean be seen from the foregoing, the Supervisor of tbc Freedom of Information 

office holds a podtion of some administrative responsibility overseeing the administration 

of the Act through the supeNision of staft personnel, Mud@ Freedom of Informadon 

Analysts. The job is obviously a scnsitivc one which requirts a degree of judgment, 

supNisoy rkllb as well as inter-personal and arrnmunlcation rkilla 

Tbe record reflects that the Board of Commissioaers was faced with two strong 

candidates, among others, in the person of the gricvor and the successful applicant, Ms. 

Susan Cardwell. At tbc time of tbe epplidon, Mr. de Sib had come twentptwo (22) 

ycus mrvia with the force. Between February of 1971 and September of 1984 he fuWed 

r number of fuacLtonr in tbe Payroll atice, including acting as paymaster on OOCILSI*~~, a 

task which involved the supenision of a staff of some twenty (20) persons. Mr. de Silva's 

PAmintkbativc md uccudve experience continued in his role as Vice President of the 

Metropolitan Toronto Police AYodation, r full-time position which he assumed by dcction 

in Oaober of 1984 and held until October of 1991. Hls duties as Vice Resident of the 
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krsodation were extedvc, including n primsry responsibility for tbc grievance mmmittec, 

of wbich he was chair, chsiting the finance committee, with responsibility £or a d d d m i q  

a budget of some $3 million, and, g d y  overseeing all administrative dunctions of the 

Amciation. In addition to sewing on atl bargaining cammittcts, he was involved in liaison 

with the Chief of Police and other command ofhcen in rrurttcn touching the membtrship, 

dealt with prmincial and municipal elected officials, was active in confcru~xs and seminars 

on poltdng and labour relations matters, oocasioaaUy handled media communications, dealt 

with the chair of the Police Services Board and the Director of Labour Relations in his 

representational capacity and served as a resource penon to the T o m o  Mayor's 

Committee on Community and Race Relations, acting as a voting member on its sub- 

oommitta on policing. 

As a member of a visible minority of East A s h  origin, Mr. do Silvrr appears to have 

had ~ c r & l c  ruccess in his invohemimt in community and race relations. Following his 

lscrvia as Via  Resident of the Assodation, Mr. de Silva retuned to work for the Chief of 

P W  as the Chief a community liaison officer, a position which be held at the tbe of his 

rpphdon Sor the job call which is the subject of this grievance, although its name had then 

been changed to Cbmmad~ Service Officer, In that capacity he war responsible for 

l&ia&g with ammhaative committees of the Black, aik and South Wan cmmuddes, 

the prepluation lrnd recording of meetings of the Chief of Police and other oommand 

officers with those comdttetb, and bllowing up in the resolution of problems m i d  by the 

rrhority c0mmMfty representatives. Nc also continued to be responsible for representing 
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the Force rt meetings of tbc Toronto Mayo', Committee on Commllnity and Race 

Rerotions and iti Aeass to Services Implementadon Oommittct. Mr. & Silve rlso 

functioned as 'Ihsurer of the Greater Toronto Region Working b u p  on Policing In 

Multiculhual, h511dradal Urban Communities, a body iWr,lvtd in the prepatadon of 

gddelines for aids management and oonhict resolution. Ha also acted rs the provindal 

tiaiEon snd Ontario delegate to the Canadian Centre for Police Raa Relations in Ottawa, 

a function which required him to keep the national centre advised of race relations 

initiadva and programs of all major police forax in Ontario. Mr. de Silva holds a 

certificate in Business AdmfniEtration from Ryerson and has also ampleted sonu ten 

muw tn political sdena at the University of Toronto. 

'Ihe nrcassful applicant, Ms. Susan Cardwell, is also an imprash candidate. 

Having camplctcd a diploma in Food Technology at Humber College, she joined the Fom 

in December of 1982, Sina that ttme she has also completed c o u ~  in mana~cment skills, 

computers and word proassing, supervisory principles as well as ethnicity and raoc &tiom. 

Ma Cardwell worked initlalIy as an Occurrences Clerk in the Records Bureau from May of 

1981 to Much of 1985. Therafter rhe spent two years as r station operator in the 

Int8lligc11# sdces,  with respolrsibflitics for operating a htdesk switchboard. From July 

of 1987 to October of 1989 8he was a clerk with the Five District Drug Squad ad, mast 

signifiumdy, from October of 1989 to the time of the job competition, drmctioned as 

Adminbtratha Chordinator for 52 Division, descrlbcd m one of the busiest police dividons 

in tbnnrln. klb. Cardwell's mponsibilities as Administrative Co-ordinatot involved the 
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supcrvisiOn ol four .dmidstdvc derks, d t i n g  In the preparation of the annul hudgct 

bWng some $27 dlion in 1993, ongoing control ond monitoriag of expenditurtg 

fwolvement in the preparation of unit sQategies aad objectivts, tbc ovexwhg of inventory, 

the jmparadon of mmpondencc and porfonning the duties of a Commirrioaer of Oath 

Ms. Cardwell'r rcs~ibiIiticr at S2 Division, which eqloyed romt 466 p p l e  at the ti=, 

included participation in the budget oommittee, the oudit committee md the strategy 

committee, a body involved fn the preparation of a yearly missSon statement of objccdvcs 

md goals. Her m r d  disclc~es that she came to the job competition with a positive record 

in both tbe daytoday administration of a substantial budget and inventory, and the medium 

to long-term planning process central to the operation of a busy police station, a role which 

involved ongoing Lwolvement with officers at the most senior level. 

The job competition for the position of Supervisor in the Freedom of Information 

unit was overseen by the unit cwrdinator, StaBE Sergeant Ray Desjardins. His evidence 

discloses that after an initial weening of appiicants, eleven finalists were scheduled for 

intervieun md written testk The seledioa committee war comprised of tbme persons: Staff 

sergeant DqJ'atdins, Mr. M. 1. Wu, Director d tho Records and Wonnation Securfty unit, 

rvhicb avenees the Freedom of Urmation section and Ms. Matinella Bkk, a 

repreme- of the Forces Employment Office. The intwviews and wrltten tats were 

cooductad on A@ 14 and l5, 1993, The candidates, who had previously been provided 

photocopied c~rctrpu of the Privacy Act and pamphlets from the oilficc of Privacy 

cbnmhshlltr, were first given a written test, which was eventually marked by Staff Sergeant 
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Dujardins. 'Ihe interview consisted of two parts. The first involved general questions of 

the llpndiAntr witb rcrpect to their budget experience, supervision e r n e m ,  education, and 

general experience, with an assessment of their verbal communication rldlls and mrall 

b o d  perdorrrrm~~~. The second part of the intendew consisted of p c X c  problem 

questions to be answered verbally. Tbe evidence &doses that both the writ- test and the 

wbal intavitw were highly sbuctured, with a preestablished marking scheme. Tbe 

intendm were conducted in a consistent fashion, with the same questions being a h l  of 

eacb candidate by the same panel member. 

'Ihe average score for all candidates, based on the results of their intadow and a 

written tat was 733. Only two candidates mred above 80, Ms. cadwe11 witb a result of 

855 d Mr. de Silva with 813. 'Ibe evidence further discloses that on the htedew portion 

of tbe selection process, which involved all three of the assessors, there was wry little 

d&dncrion between the scores registered for the grievor and for Ms. ChdwelL On that 

portion Mr. dc Sha registered 633 percent while Ms. Cardwell rtood at 64.5 perant The 

greater part of tbe ultimate dff6erencc between them flows from the combinad smm of the 

written test and educational background, whkh were done by StaE Serlpeant Dsjardins, 

although tbcy were reviewed by the other members of the selection ccrmmittoe. On that 

portion Ms. CPrdweII scored r total of 21 points while Mr. de Silva was given 18 points. 

The Assochion's attack upon tbe selection process is thrwfold. It does not suggest 

that the rtntcture of the process, the foctors considered and the quastions put to the 
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cazdidatcs both with respect to their vwn experience and their howbdge of the Freedom 

of InbDI.modon material prdded to tbem was in any way inappropriate. Its COUHIC~ argues, 

however, that when regad is had to the scores of the two uudidates, they should be found 

to be relatively equd wftbin the memQ of Articlc 16.a of the collective agreement. 

Swmdly, be asserts that certain of the marks assigned to Mr. dc Silva, partiartarb with 

respect to his experience and prior qualific~dops, arc unduly low ps compared with Ms. 

Cardwe& M y ,  the &adadon asserts that Staff Sergeant Desjardina engaged in 

deliberate disaimination against Mr. de Silva, by reason of his involvement in the 

Assodation, cantrary to Artide 408 of the coilective agreement. 

The Asbodation's aUegatian of anti-union discrimination is based on the evidence of 

Ms. Deborah Kelford Ms. Kelfcmt, wfio had worked as a Disdosurt Analyst in the 

Freedom of Information unit for some two and a halt years at the time of the job posting, 

was one of the applicants who made it to the final interview stage, Thc cvldence discloses 

tbat she worked in the office under Ms. Paula Wilson, Ms. Cardwell's predecessor in the 

pasidon of Supervisor, Freedom of Informatioa. 

Ma Word testified that when she did not succad, in the competition she qoke with 

of tbdr clbadaq according to her testimony, Staff Sergeant Dqjudins disclosed that Mr. 

& Silva had placed second fn the competition. She relates that Staff Sergeant Dajardins 

stated that be had marked Mr. de Sba lower bwuse he had concerns that the griwor 



n igh  be m&ctcd 8s VJOt RajdCOt of the Aswdatbn in the 1994 eldops, causing StsfC 

Segcant Debjardim to bse bb wwiccs. AccoFdlng to her cvidtna, Staff S e w  

wb mhtcd that Ms. Black and Mr. Dear had in fact marked Mr. do Silva high, but 

tbt  he had deliberately m k t d  him lower to avoid thc possible problem of awarding tbe 

@tion to t ~ m # u r e  who might not r e d  in it for very long. According to hk Kelford's 

cvldence, then quedioaed StaE Sergeant Desjardins' rationale, noting that Ms. Cardwell 

was prepant and would also be on leave fmm the position, by reason of maternity. She 

stated that Staff Sergeant Desjardins seemed surprised by that info~mation 

Ms. ICellord's evidence huther dimes that rhe communlcatsd what shc allegedly 

Icamed fmm Staff Sergeant Desjardins to Mr. de Silva during a rubsqutnt collvltro8t. 

betwan them MI. Kelford also testified that she bad observed h k  Cardwell meeting with 

S M  Sergeant Desjardins at the Freedom of Information office in the canpany of Paula 

Wilson, romt tfme prior to the job call, noting that Ms. Cardwell had succeeded Ms. Wilson 

in the position of Administrative Cwrdinator at 52 D'iIon. 

the incident imrolvhg Ms. Cardwell's visit to StafE Sergeant Desfardins' ofSice before the job 

call was pwted, She relates that she h e w  Ms. Cardwcll &om a pdor amtact when she 

worked in the court system. According to her evidence, Ms. Catdwell came to visit Staff 

Sergeant Desjardins shortly nftcr it became known that rupe~visor Paula Wilson had 

OW another job and would be leaving. She rtates that a few days aftenvards she mw 



Miss Cardwell go into Staft Sergeant Dctfardins' office wbere, by her estimate, dw spent 

#rme two burs in cuuwmtion with him. She tcrdfied tbat, It didn't hit me until I farmd 

out rbe did appiy. Tben it rcaliy hit home.' 

SUE Sergeant Dcsjardi rquarely dcaits tha conversation dlegcd to hsnre taken 

place between himself and Ms. KcIford with respect to deliberately marking down Mr. dt 

Sib& According to his evidence, following the job competition he asked Ms. K6Ibard t she 

wanted a post morfem on her appiication, to dixuss her strengths and w c a k m w .  "I& 

ha states, was an offer he rnade to all uasuocessful candidates. According to Staff Sergeant 

arosc in the context d a question h m  Ms. blford as to whether ahe might haw placed 

racoad or third. He states that he can rucall telling Ms. Kelford that he did tend to mark 

tbe candidates lower than did the other intemewers, Mr. Dear and Ms. Black He also 

agreed tbat there was mendon of Ms. Cardwell's pregnancy in the aanvemtion with Ms. 

Word He states that he believes that tbat topic came up with respect to the possibility 

af tbc Freedam of Infodon office being without a Cbm 10 supmku because of kt 

impending prtenancy leave. According to Staff Sergeant Desjdns he was rlready aware 

of Me, Cardwell's pregnancy, as she bad told him about it, dwing an earlier inttrview at his 

o£ficc, qprently the same intewiew which had baa observed by Ms Kslfwd. He states 

that he £cigaed suprise when it was raised by Mr. Kefford, u it was a matter whicb he. had 

rcafved and treated u confidential. During the oourse of his testimony staff Sergeant 

Desjardins also recalled tbat he was somewhat angry at the time of the p0st-felectio.n 
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intervkws, as there had been nuwun, c0tZIlllUnicatcd to him by & tumamdd 

crrdidaks, to tbc sffeb that the compcdtion had been h d .  According to hir ddeaoe 

those nuaours did not, however, involve allegations of deliberate Mfair trerrtment towards 

Mr. dc S h  He states that upon consulting with Mr. Dear and Ms Black as to whether 

he should lnidate a complaint witb the h t e d  AfEai Department he was advised to let 

it as such rumom ware not uncommon b job eompetitb 

Staft Sergeant Dcsjardb also g a v ~  evidence d hi recollection of meeting with Ms. 

Cadwell in his office. By his recall, that meeting occurred sometime during the currency 

of the job call, between March 11 and March 29,1993. He states that Ms. Cardwell phoned 

him and asked to meet. He relatea that when she came to h& o& she stated that nhe bad 

rometh&g p e w d  md private to disclose. She went on to explain tbat she had becn giving 

rome thought to applying for the Suptivisor's position in the Fteedom of Information Unit, 

but had concern because she was pregnant, and did not want to place tbe office in a 

position where, if ohe was the s u e  candidate, she mtght shortly talw a pregnancy b v e ,  

md in StaE Sctgernt Dejardins' words, "Leave us in the lurchn. He states that he essund 

Ms. aafdwell tbat that wodd not be a consideration, and that indeed my amtmy dew 

would be against both internal policy and the provisions of the Ontario Human Rights Code, 

On that basfs he encouraged ber to go ahead to proceed with her upplimtioa Hc 

charsderized tho meeting as being very short, perhaps 'ten minutes at the outside.'' 

The evi&nce of Ms. Cudwell, whom the Mittator judges to be m honest and 



with to ber visit to hfs of6u at the Cbllcge Strtet headquarters. By ha reoollection, 

however, hw telephone cat1 to Strrfi Sergeant Desjardins, and their meeting was in late 

February or euly Match of 1993, in admmc of the actual pastbg of the job call. She stst# 

that, being aware that tbe job was opening up, rhe wanted to find out mom about it, ad 

wanted to sdvisb S M  Sergeant Desjardins that she was pregnant, b u l d  that brvt my 

PbsbfbIe adverse impact ff she should be the succc6sful candidate. According & her 

testimony their cowersation, which took place during her lunch break, totalled 

apprnn'mately twenty minutes. During that drne Stall? Sergeant DGsjardins explained the . 

outlines of the functions of the office and the supervisor's responsibilities. She also testified 

that when sbs did disclose her pregnancy, md wss assured by him that it would not be a 

faaor, she asked StafP Sergeant Desjardfns not to repeat that information as, 'At that stage 

I was keeping it quiet." Sbe turther states that &er ber me* with Stat? Sergeant 

Dasjardina she may bave had a brief encounter with Ms. Wi'lsan, the departing incumbent, 

and auld not rocall the mbstaaoc of their oomtmtion, save to speculate that she probably 

had Warted the mason for bet visit to St.& Sergeant I)eajardiob. 

Tba Arbitrator &ems it appropriate to d h p e  of tbc h e  of alleged disaimiPation 

at this point, The merits of that h e  plainly turn on the aedibility of the testimony of Ms 

icelfotd. It i s  axiomatic that serious allegations, including such matters as fraud or bad faith, 

must b urpported by evidence of commensurate weight, (Indosmfa Ud. (I978), 20 LAC 

(24 87 (M.O. Picher): ALbata (Row) (1994), 51 LkC. (4th) 397 (McFetridgc); 
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k b m q  &ita Hotel (1995), 48 L A C  (4th) IS0 (Knopr). It therefore bccamor aeouuary 

t o a r m i n a ~ d o s e l y t b e ~ t i m o p y d M r K c l l o r Q ~ i t r e L ~ t o h a d e g a t i 0 ~ ~ ~  

on tbe one hand, Staff Sergeant Derjardins opcnly admitted to b a  thrt he dbtibarately 

marked down Mr. 6 S i b  because of his possible h v o l v ~ ~ ~ n t  in the a i h h  of the 

Arrod.tioa, rad that there was preferential treatment or oollwion with rerpcct to the 

t u d  can* of Ma CardweL 'Xhcre b reawn to conclude that the twidacc d Ms. 

W o r d  ir less than reliable. Dwiag the course of QOSkeXILmiElELtion by oounse) for the 

Board of Comianen,  Ms. Kelford stated that wben Ms. Cardwell came to visit Staff 

Sergeant Desjardix~~ in his offia the two of them spoke "for a cwple of hoursw. Wben 

asked how she could be so artain as to the time she stated, "I'd heard that sbe was going 

to apply, u, wben I saw bu there I took notice. I looked at my watch, and i t  was a cwple 

of hours." However, shortly thereafter, she gave a different version as to why the visit drew 

her attention. She stated that the job call had not yet come out yet when Ms. Cardwell 

visited Staff Sergeant Desjardim After it aunt out, she asserted, "Ilae p i m e  fit together... 

It didn't hit me until I found out she did apply - then it really hit home." 

Whwl the foregob tvidenoe t e x a d d ,  thcrt 18 an arguable inmdstepcy. Tbe 

recond part of the evidence would -at that Ms. Kelford had no reason to pay close 

attention to tbc mooting between Mr Cudwell and Staff !Sergeant Debjardins at the timc 

that it happened, rs its importance only came home to her later. Howcnr, the dirst part of 

ber ddenoe indicates that 8he dmed the meeting with her watch, u it occurred. It is 

difficult for the Arbitrator to apptcdate, if the meeting had no cigdicanee for her until 
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mme kter time, why she d d  time it witb her watch as it was unfoldibg. The acridena 

of Ma Cudwell, whicb the Arbitrator 8cecpt.s without qualificatioa, h that the meeting 

o d  during her lunch bow, and Wed no more than twenty minute& W e  Staff 

Sergeant Desjardins' evidence is i t s  than prccise in many rqcck,  I am compelled to 

prefer tbe testimony of M6. Cardwfll to that of Ms. KeIford. It Is, quite W y ,  difticult to 

imagine 8 two hour meting of the sort d c r c n i  by Ms. Kelford The iarpkudbility of her 

evidence, ooupled with the apparaot oontradiction In her rationale for reding what 

oaamd, suggests that her recollection of events is less than fully reliable, even if it should 

be w p t e d  that she did not deliberattly intend to give false evidcoce, 

What, then, of the alleged anversation between Ms. Kelford and Staff Sergeant 

Derjardh? At best, the evidence with refpect to that exchange, and the alleged disdoscve 

by Stafi Sagcant Desjardins that he dtlibcmtcly marked down Mr. de Sha, m h e s  itself 

to a antat of credibility between two dativtly weak witnesses. At most, the d c t  in 

evidence betwean them remtliad unresolved by any objective or axroborating tesdmony. 

It ia, of course, quite possible that Word misconstrued something that was raid by 

Staft Sergeant Dtrjatdins, urd is dnccre in her belief as to the truth of ber tosthony. In 

the Arbitrator's ritw, the evidence witb respect to this isrme is at bat  qadvod, and in 

relrthdy equal brlancc. Bctuhg ia mind tbat the Arsodatioa bears the onus of proof on 

this matter, I cannot find that it h proved, on the balance of probabilities, that Staff 

SergW Desljudinr did delkrately mark down Mr. de Silva because of his parWpation 

in the rctMties of the Metropolitan Toronto Police Association On that basis the 
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allegation of discriminatoxy trcatmcat of tbe gricvot and the alleged vialotion of Article 4:W 

1 turn to d d e r  tbe hue of the relative quality of the two candidates, Mr. de Sitvo 

and Ms. (hnlwcll, artd the related question of whether, as alleged by the Arsodrrlion, Mr. 

de Silva should haw been scored more hlghly in respect of artat? e x p r i m  a d  

quallficatfon factors, 

Cumd for tbe Board of Commissioners submits that the job competition and 

intendew process was conducted in an objective and consistmi manner. She nates that all 

oftbe candidates ware given the same test both written and verb& In the same format and 

drcumstanaff 'Ihe candidates were abo iatcrviewed identically, with questions being put 

by the rsune panel member, in accordance with a prearranged rcript. She notes that each 

of the three assessors kept his or her k m  notes and entered their own mm without 

refening to those of others. She stresses that while i t  is true that Staff Sergeant Debjardins 

marked the written test, he did 60 before d o i i  r taUy of the candidates' pcrfomaaoe on 

the oral interdew, w, he c d d  not have known the degree of mark manipulrtibn tha! might 

have been nsassaty to advantage or disadvantage my candidate. She also notes the 

&dace of Mr. Dut e the effect that he reviewed the &l<s on both tbe written pordon, 

determiad by S W  Sergeant Dcsjardins, and the interview portion 

Counsel points to the overall scores recorded for each of the candidates during the 
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interview portion, as notad by the three panel members. She stresses that tbe pattan . 

rstlcctcd in tbom scores i s  that Staff Sergeant Desjardins tended, as a @ ~nlttr_r] to 

mark candidates lowu tban Mr. Dean or Mr. Black Sbc submits that there i s  no substadd 

on which to condude that he madpulatcd smm 8s to disadvaotagt tE# gtitvor] as 

ampred to any ,other candidate. She submits tha! in uamining the wide= the 

Arbitrator should not lightly iater£crc with the judgment of management in aswing the 

relative muit, of the competing applicants, absent compelling evidence of bad faith or 

dkddnatian. 

Cmme1 for the Board of Oonrmissioncrs stresses tbat Ms. Cardwell's experience in 

the crftical area of budget preparation and admidstration was more direct and extensive 

than that of Mr. de S h  She wtef thot his imhrcment with the budget of the 

Metropolitan Tofopto Police Assodadon was less direct, as a full-time oontroller was 

emplayed by the Association to deal marc directly with budgetary matters. She also notes 

that during the course of the interview, Mr. de Silva was not forthcoming with respect to bis 

own practical experieaa within the Association, as it might relate to the kaon which wwld 

support his qualification for tbe tupcrvicof~ position. She notes, for example, that dun'mg 

the anme of the interview, be did not make specific mention of his race relations W n  

work or his involvemt in the Mayor's Committee. la amttast, she submits, Ms. aatdweU 

was more forceful, thorougb and inturvlcwed better, a consideration which the panel felt to 

be r e l ~ n t .  



c o ~ c a t l o n  as was Ms. CvdwcU. She further points to h&i fsilnrc on one of the written 

questions, dnnnrnbg stadsdcal data on d h k h q  drivfns offences, where the gcicsa fatled 

to detect a hidden tlrw in tbe question, u r result of which he rtotivcd no marks. Caunscl 

rtresses that, as in any process of d u a t i o n  by s e v d  pas04 then must be an clemtat 

of mbjdv i ty  bmught to bear. She rtresses that it was for the plrrroi to dttwmino the 

weight that it would ghrc to the interview, and that in evaluating both the gribvbr and Ms. 

Cardwell, to detenninc what weight should be given to prior experience. SIC strcsa that 

in tbese areas the Ahitrator should not lightly interfere with the ju- of the empioyer's 

~ n t a t i v e s .  

C o d  rlso emphasizes the evidence of the emphycis witnesses to the effect that 

Ms. Cardwell is markedly superior. She notes the testimony of Ms, Black to the tffect that, 

"Ihe winner was deaf indicating that half a point to a point would, in her view, be the 

margin of relative quality. Sbt also points to the evidence of Staff Sergeant DGsjardins 

wbo placed the margin at 2 to 3 points. 

1x1 support of her submissions, Counsel for the BQard of CommWoners refers the 

Arbitrator to the following reported awards: Re G m t  h n t k  md h d 6 c  W p a n y  of 

Canada Ltd and C8nadinn Food and Allied Workers UnJon, Lacab 175 and 633 (1979). 

21 &LC (26) 444 (Weatberill); Re Bdtiah h t  Tobacco Co. of Canada Itd mnd 

CInadlur Unloa of O p m t h ~  Euglncers 6 General Worken (1981), 3 LA.C (34  235 



& h a r k +  Laal226 (1989). 4 LAC (4th) 390 (ChertJann): Re Religious Hospkdka of 

St. J0)cph of Hotel DIcu (Klagston) and Ontario Public suvi# EmpIo)ser Union, Incrl 

46S (1994), 43 LAC (4th) US (Simmons); & PDWe Utllltler Colrttioa of dhdt 

stc Muic and Canadlam Union of PubUc Emplgecr, -3 (1994), 14 LAC (4tb) 286 

(Hianegan). Unreported awards which were cited are as follows: British Columbia Rapid 

Raastt Ca Ud, and Independent Canadian ' h ~ ~ i t  Union, Local 7, an unreported award 

of arbitrator Dalton L Larson dated August 5,1992. Health Sciences Centlle and MPnitoba 

Assoclotton of HerltL Cam Pmfeuioaab, an ~tlleportcd award of arbitrator of William D. 

Hamilton snd dated February U, 1993; 'Ibe 'Ibmnto Hyd~oclecbic System md CmadSIn 

Ualon dPabllc Employees, Wl, an unreported award of arbitrator Victor Solomatenko 

dated December 20, 1993; Gt, Josephv# Health Centm of Iandon und Ontario Numa' 

ArncWoq an unreported award of arbitrator 8. Welling dated July 18, 1988. 

Caunscf for ihe Assodation submits that ,the overall evidence establishes that, in fact, 

Mr. de S h  and Ms. Cardwell were relatively equal, as reflected in their prformancs and 

SMhration in the job compctitloa He rtreases that when those parts of the competition 

marked and awscd d l y  by Staff Sergeant Desjardins ue set aside, namely the written 

test md the education evaluation, tbcrc is very little numerical difference between the two 

capdidaten Thc interview score for Ms. Cudwell was 645 while for Mr. de Silva it was 

633. 
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k a f ' t  paridon, Cowsel for the Assodadon rub& that the svidaace disclare, 

tbat in fact the thres selection panelists did not appredate the rtandard d sdcdio11 

mtemplated h Article 16a of tbc colWvc agrtc,mot. He arbmits that they in ba 

rppW a d a  aquality test, rather than a ta t  of relative equalie, giving undue weight to 

mlatiwly minor numerical Mcre~)ocs in scores. Ia this regard he notes the evide~x of 

Staff Sergeant Desjardins to tbe eftect that the concept of the rebdve equality of candidam 

was never in EBCt dibcussed amon8 tbe panel. Referring to prior arbitration awards, he 

rubmits that the standard established in cases involving relative quality is that there must 

be r substrrndal and demonstrable margin between the candidates before it is concluded that 

they are not relatively q d  By way of axample hc nfm the Board to the following 

dsdsions: Re WeIleSrey Hospital and Ontario Nu-' ksodrtion (1989), 5 U C  (4th) 

55 (Wauhrm) and Conmll Police Assochtlon and Board o t  Qmmlrrlouem 0tPdla br 

tbe Cby of ChmaIl, an unreported award of arbitrator LG. Ibome dated October 22,199 1. 

He rbo ders  the &%itrator to the foUowing dedsions of the Grievance Settlement Boatd: 

Mr. W U r  Latkbrldge md Tbe Crown la Right of Ontruio (Miniilrtrg. of Health) an award 

of r paael chatred by P.G. Barton dated July 9,1981; OPSEU md W Own Ln RIgM of 

Onevb (Miatrty of CawrPment SemW) (Grievance of Mtu Jidy Wonfql) lo ward of 

8 panel chaired by P. Drsper, dated March 4, 1982; OPSEU and The ClPrm i. Nght d 

OlltuJo (MinMq of TranrporWton and Commwicrtiolu) (Grievance ot Ian G, Bullen), 

award of 8 p e l  chaired by J.W. Sarnuels, dattd August 3,1982; OPSEU and 'Ihc czwwn 

h Right Oatdo ol Hdth) (Snrulmuth~ GO=* aII .ssud of 8 

chaired by N. Dissanayake dated February 6,1992 



d iastams in whicb tbe grtew# rbould havc been given w e r  marks, the result of 

which would be to bring him still closer to Ms. Cardwell in relative amding. 

Cawel points specifically to tho assessment of points to both candidatas uader the 

W n g  "Educationa, whicb was done entirely by Sta£f Sergeant Desjardins Tbat section 

provides a possl'ble ten points for a post secondary diploma or certificate relevant to the 

Freedom of Informadon Supervisor's pasition, two points for every course that the individual 

bar taken that would benefit directly the candidate and the force in completing the assigned 

tasks and, thirdly, Y, points for cvcry life experitace that would be of direct or indirect 

Staff &qernt Desjardit~ usigned her a total of four points for We experiences, two for her 

wrpesleaee as an a a d b y  police officer and two for hor work as the AdmiPiiltrative Co- 

ordbtor at 52 M i o n  In dealing with Mr. de Silva, bowever, he asscsstd ody two points 

in total for his life ex perk^ being d t  for his work as Mce President of the 

Metropolitan Toronto Polkc Assodadoa Counsel stresses that Staff Sergeant Desjardins 

awsrded no Ilfc H e n c e  msrks to Mr. dt Silva for a wmbcr of uq~rkrrces urd 

ochievemcnts, Wuding Ms involvement in the Acctsa to SeNices and Implementation 

Committee, a minottty oammunity Uliron group wbkb Stdf Sergeant Desjardins described 

as '8 polidcaIly oomd &bating society'. Nor, Counsel notes, war any crcdit far related Ue 

eqdence given for Mr. de Sihds service on the Chiefs Liaison Oommittee on Race 

Relations, stressing that after the grievor left the Association his job within the borce for 
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J m a c t ~ y c u l w ~ U ) b C t h O ~ t ~ ~ f t b C ~ d o f P o l i ~ ~ h ~ V l t h ~ p d e  

nos relations isma Ukmb, Chumel s t m s q  w, credit whatwcr was ureured for Mr. 

de SWL experience as the tcpracntativt of tbc force on the Mayorr's committee. In 

mspta of all of these facts, Counsel points to the testimony of Mr. Dw, one of tbe 

1~1cetio~ panelists, who c o d a d  thn Mr. dc Silm should have ken awarded points for his 

ldgb profile involvement in ram relations and community liairon duties. Counsel aqua that 

if only two points had been awarded for dl of the grimr's accomplishments in this a m ,  

tbe diftfcrencc between himself and Ms. Cardwell would be reduced to a two-point spread, 

Additionally, c o ~ l  notes tbat Staff Sergeant Dtsjardins attributed no credit b the £act 

that, for considerabtc perids of time, Mr. de Suva fulfilled the role of acting paymaster for 

thc tndre poll= f o r e  with respof~~'bWy tot all h e s  of pay and benefits, and ongoing 

involvement with senior of6ccrs in tba adminhration of the payroll system Further, 

counsel points to the fact that during the course of ~ t ~ ~ ~ - c x a m h t i o n  Stafi Sergeant 

Desjardins himself amceded tbat perhaps one or two points should have b a n  given for the 

grievor'r orpetience on tbe Mayor's Committee. 

Counsel fur&her suggests tha! tbc muking of Mr. de Sun on verbal o~mmllnicadon 

rldlb uld his overall selection board performance was prejudicial. Tbe evidence disd- 

that StaEf Sergeant Dmjardins made tbe notation "accent' on his duadon sheet, referring 

to tbe fact that Mr. de Sihra speaks with a slight South Asian accent. This obviously 

dirturbd Mr. & Sihra who, in his own testimony, speculated tbat a Soottisb or lrth accent 

would not have been notod in that fashion. Counsel suggests that the mui.JPe of Mr. de 



u to tbe frirncsd brought to bear in respect of the gricvor. Cbunscl stresses the comment 

af Staff Sergeant Desjardins made during the cou1sc of bis cross-cmnhation to the effect 

that Mr. de S M  might have been awarded eight to ten p o h  in verbal commlm(cation 

if he had not been &I wttapokn, if he had mom modulation in his voice and if be 

bad m recent. 

Counsel also objects to the manner in which Staff Sergeant Desjardins scored Mr. de 

Wva on one of the written questions. The question, which was number four on the written 

test, a n d  the aoatysis of a statistical chan relating ta drink@ md driving offenas. 

'Ibe number of *offencesm registered for matw and females is tabulated hr a fivc year 

period &om 1988 to 1992 inclusive. The candidate is asked, in part, "What conclusions can 

be drawn about the rate of male and female drinking driven?H, and ", What statistid 

~~nclusions can you draw salely from the figures that are presented here?" 

The uble af data shows 8 c~nsisttdy dcdfniDg nwnber of drialdng driving &enas 

Got malet, and a coaaisteatly increasing number of drinking drMng offences for females wcr 

thi iwywparlod ' ~ b e ~ t p l r m m b u o f ~ ~ b r c c n t o ~ e ~ ~ n ~ i s t e o t l ~ o v o r i b e  

same period, with male offences substantially outnumbering female offences in each year. 

Aceatdfng to the answer key, a foul ol seven m b  were available Lor five points which 

could bave bwn drawn from the data With respect to the five pain& the answer b t  



Pointl- 

Point 2 - 

 PO^ 3 - 

Point 4 - 
POINTS- 

Fmm 1988 through 1992 the mrmbcn of female 
dq~cz  have increased eacb year. 

Prom 1988 through 1!J92 the number of male drWdng 
Mving charger have decreased each year. 

From 1988 thugh 1992 tbcrc were more male 
binkiag drivers than female drinking drivers 
duuged. 

From 1988 through 1992 the total number of 
drinkiag/ddving charges has increasedl 

However: one cannot say anything ootlceming 
the relative percentages of male and female 
drinking drivers without additional Momration 
(eg. whether in W tbere were more 
drtaldng/driving firnala or wbethtr it is simply 
r matter of fewer males driving, or convclsely 
more (greater percentage of females driving etc 
w 

Totd marks, 7/- 1 pin t  for Pta #1 thmugh #4, and 3 point& lor pt, UJ) - [7] 

Mr. de Silva'r tcrp~se to the question is as fdows: 

"In tbe years 1988 to 1992 thare is a decline in the number of 

male drinldng drivers. Even tbougb in the same period fsmale 

drinldng ddvm ue trrrall wben compared with the male 

counterpart tberc to be over a 100 percent increase 

betwoen 1988 and 1992 of f e d  drinkiqg drh,ess.* 

SUE Sug,eant Dtsjardius awarded no points to Mr. de Silva for that response. He 



drinldng driven and d r W q  drivers who became modaid with a recorded ~ C I ) C O .  

CouP#l far tbc Assodadoa mbmfts that the gricvor rbould ~uvertbekss have tsceivtd stme 

p o h  for Ms mswer, as it doss reflect some appreciation of the distinctions and beads 

wfthiD the data, even though bis nomenclature may not have been as p d s c  as the answw 

Wt hrve called for. He submits that some analytical ability b shown in the gricvm's 

reply, Pnd that to @ve no marks whatsoever was unduly barsh. By wmparison, camsel 

notes that in another question Ms. Cardwell was given a bonus point, above the limit of 

pobtr tmnternplated in the m e r  key, on a question which involved identifying spelling and 

grammatical errors in r memorandrua Stressing that all of these questions were marked 

in the d c  discretion of Staff Ssrgmt Desjardins, counsel rakes corzcerns about tbe rcope 

for dimetion in the marker, and its @act in r ampetition wbero the results between the 

top two candidates arc u, nurnericaUy dight. 

On the wbole, Counsel submits that the evidence discloses that there were areas in 

which Mr. de S h  could Pod should have ken given am marks, particularly in rohdon 

toht~~incommd~nesmk~lu,bkvmlrontbe~isBlnmltrsq.Idbis 

involvement in tbe preparation and administration of the budget of the Poke Assodation. 

Camsel rto svcsacr tht the marking of Mr. de S h  by Staff Sergeant Dajvdinr was 

noticeably more negative for the intcIview portion than was the markiq of him as rscordd 

by tba other two panelists. By way of example he points to the marks mcordcd for the 

eighth question la the intwvicw, for which Mr. Dear and Ms. Black asmscd Mr. de SUvr 
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ten points, the highat @en to any candidate, w h h  Staff Sergeant Desj& awarded 

seven and a half pohts, which was lower tban the oight points which dI three panellists gave 

kCudwefL 

I turn to coprdder tbc merits af tbc dispute. The point of departure for the 

Arbitrator's deckion is the language of Artide 16:a of the cllllective agreement. That 

W e  plainly mandata t&at Kniority is to be the gmming &or in awarding a job 

vrrcaocy in the event that two competing applicants are 'relatively equalR on the basis of 

ability crad efficicllcy. The Brst issue of general concern is to determine what that 

s tdard  munr and whether it was properly applied by the panel charged with making the 

docision for filling the vacancy for the position of Supemisor, Fnedom of Information. 

Firstly, it abwld be noted that by their awn cvidtnce, the members of the panel did 

not spedcd ly  advert to what would CO~titUtc rektive equality, during their uwn 

dchirations. St& Sergeant Desjardins said he could not ncall my such discuss]:on, In her 

c x a m h t i o n - ~ &  Ms Black advcrttd to the testing and inmicw proms and stated, 

there was one obvious winner based on the points that each of them obtained in Lhe 

interview md test proass. He stated, in chfef, that he was aware of the collective 

agreement p W o n ,  and that in his vim a point spread of one hall to one point would 

oonstitutc relative quality. 'here is, bowever, no reflaction in the mdckace of Mr. Dear 

that tbc pael dimmed what would constitute relative equality. 



that tbe selection p w  Indudiqg the brviews, o d  qu#tioar and written q p s t h ~ ,  0s 

well as mcsmeat for education and experience was extremely complex and plfnrbaking. 

Thsre hi no sqgmtion that the questions prepared by Staff Sergeant Dqjardins, the relatfve 

wdgbt given to the snswan; or pointr to bo awered or the markiag scheme prepared by Ms. 

Black were otbcr than responsive to tht duties of the position being assigned, and were 

developed in good faith and in accotdancc with the most protdod standards. Tbat said, 

bowroer, it must be recogPizod that the scoring system attached to the process had two 

d@hint features: b t l y  h contained ample mpe for subjective b d o n  and, secondly, 

it was entidy open-end& witb no Umit to the maximum points which d d  be scored by 

my addate.  The axnbination of opencndedncso and subjective discretion is  perhaps bat 

d e d c r d  in the education and qerience portion of the evaluation pcoca~  As noted 

0bOp.q under the heading "Educationa &'part of the possible scoring is stated as foIlows: 

ltvo points bor every life experience tbat would be of &ct or 
indirect value in auisdng you ill the CLlO task(s). 

Without commcndng on the rpSd8ics of usearment warded to Ms. Cudwell md Mr. dt 

Silva, a matter dealt with in greater detail below, it strikes the Arbitrator that the potedal 

fJor garmbg ma& under that head& ia a mlmeridy scored cumpetition where the 

aswon t d & d  t h t  their notion of dative equality ratlged Irom h o  tenths of a point to 

oneor om md halfpoints hcomparingtb4 totalscores ofthe two candidates, khigbly 

questbasble. In a test of this kind, if points are assigned on a strictly objdvc basis, as for 

emmpb in mspondjng to questions that rquire mathematical dculation, ururuy in a 
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computw cxcrck or rrpiag lpocQ rcduciag dative cq* to rmJ1 fnaioasl 

mkmatical values is pahap defensible. Howcvwr, in the Arbitntm'~ view it becomes 

Mghly Qubdul exerdse to purport to mra something u ~11orphous mi veriablc as lift 

cxperi-* on a mathnuttical pint rak which ultimately finds a half point or a point 

di&re~ed bctwao two candidates to (Ike them beyond relative quality. More 

fundamentally, a general review of the ruusmmt process foL1owed by the releaion panel 

rupporbs the conclusion, which I U mmpellcd to draw on the balance of probabilities, that 

the selection committee in Cact viewed tbe job competition process as one in which, as Ms. 

Black's evidence indicates, the person wbo mrcd the highest mark would be awarded the . 

job. 2W, bowever, is aot what is conttrnplatd in Arti l16,Q 

Boudr of arbitration have exprosscd auktantial caution in approaching th notion 

of "redvs quality" reflected in job competition prcnrisions in c o U d v c  apttrnemk lbcy  

Lhe hdonr of numben, where ~81~didates m to k lgcarcd for the pupora of WVC 

quality. k tba Re W&&y Hospital case, at pp 57-58 Arbitrator Weathulll ~mmentcd 

Ui fo11ows: 

F o r c b c ~ c ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ c ~ h ~ k r b o m t h u , ~ e g r i ~ r ~ ~ l t l i v s l y  
oquj'torhm~eppliatot,iatarmsafthefactomrefefiedtoinut 
lO,W(c). "Rtlativc equality' is 8 rmttcr to be determined having regard to 
the arture of the job to be done: uc Re Gnrt Atlantic & Pmdllc Ca of 
Clara Ltd. and Cuudian Foud &Allied W o r h  Union, Ilrrrl, 175 & 633 
(1979), 21 LAC (2d) 444 (Weatherill), nbning to Rc Ldy Wt TmJl md 
l kdh Worlrwv Unbn (1969), 20 LAC. 382 (Christie), where it wu mid that 
tbe test of Velahe equality" was redly one d deter* whether or not one 
employe was mdre qualified !hart another by a "substantial and demonstrable 



While slight dureftpc~s b c ~  emplayem mwt always be 'dcmonbtrablcY 
if they are to be relied ou, tbs notion of what t a Substantial* mpdn of 
difference 4 like tho notion oi ar~lative quality" its~lf, one which calls for 
lu4gocmt in relation to the relevant drcumrtancts. Rufemnoo may also be 
made to Re ElkaW Bnynr Health Ccntre urd 0.NA (1982), 6 LAC 
(3d) 119 (Saltman), where it is said, st p. 121 thu Trocise equality a m q  
individuals is, of ourre, impdble to measure. Acmrdingfy, the uaplaycr 
cannot =ize upon &or differences to defeat the application of seniority ...'. 

As a general matter, in this Arbitratois view, where it can be shown that an 

employer has taken into account all relevant dderations in comparing two candidates for 

a job promotion and has done so consistently for each of them, a Board of Arbitration 

should k ductant tointudcn with the result, oven if it might have areikd greater weight 

or vilue to a given Eaetor u it might apply to the grieving u p s u m  andidate. Where, 

however, tbe evidence clearly ddmnstratcs that substanrial rnrr of experience for one 

capdidate arc ghsn no value while points are awarded to similar or comp~rsblc typa d 

ercpericncc for the s u w f u l  Wdatc ,  a board of ubiuatlon can legitimately cnmine; the 

Wben tbe rbovc priadplts arc applied to the evidenm In ths cpse at hand there is 

rubtoatial reason to question the OOIlClusion of tbc selection pael  to tbe cfkct that the 
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grimor was not rcladveb epwl to tbc successful lppricant, Ms. Qrdwell I. approaching 

this h e  the Arbitrator is oompclled to doscly exambe the assessment of botb EanAirlrta 

done by Staff Sergeant Dcsjardfns, pullarluly as he waa tasponsfbk (or allotting podm, in 

r e p &  of their education lad experience. I have alu, considered doody the argument of 

counsel for the Board of cbmmiuionass, whose efforts on behalf of ber dient were 

exttemely tborou@ and prddonal, to the eflea that Staff Sergeaat Ikrjardias was in fact 

harder on all of tbc candidates In respcct of his marking, as compared to the other two 

panel Jnembcm When tbc werall marks for all candidates fntcndewcd arc aamined, the 

Aibitrator is cotllpclled to conclude that while it k true that S W  Sergeant ~ 8 t d h  did 

senerally mark candidates lower than his colleagues did, there are some important 

distinctions to be noted Fitly, whu, regard is had to the inteniw portion, which i s  the 

oaly part for whlcb all three assessors entered marks, the dtfferena in marking h e e n  

Staff Sergeant Dcsjardias and his c o l l ~ e s ,  while lower for the Staff Serge@ where all 

but two c a d W e  m concerned, is substantially lower where Mr. dc Silva is comemed. 

Staff Sugcaat Desjardins soored seven candidates, other than Mr. de Sihrcr, lower than did 

one as more of his pawl colleagues on the interview portion l l ~ e  avwage dif6ctetltial 

between hlr rooring and that of his mt marking colleague among thacc man emp1qms 

i s  12 marks. Remarkably, the marking differential between hirnsclf and botb Mr. Dear and 

Ms. Black, in the intendew asmsrnent of Mr. de Silva u almost three times p a t c r ,  at a 

mu@ of 35 pdM Botb Mr Bkd; lad Mr. Dspr mred the yLvor ut 64 1/2 points for 

thc inbdew portion, the same mark whicb all three rsremrs gave to Ms. Qrdwell. 

~ t r I  Staff Sergeaat ksjudia gave Mr. de Silva only 61 points. At a nlairnum, it 



would rppcar that whik it is tme that Staff Sergeant Dtrjatdias was harder oa modt 
I 

sppli~dth~tovora~rbeh~ew,h.arr~~bEtantiallyhr&r,ucDmpued 

with his oallugueq wbcrc Mr. & Snw was awamed. It should alsa be noted that on the 

written portion of the compctitton, which was matkcd wtclusivdy by Staff Scrgant 

Desjardins, Mr, de Silva, whose interview raalng was at the highest level in the eyes of two 

of the three panel members, scored substantially bIow the average for all candidates. The 

umu registered on the written portion ranged born seventeen down to six, 6n an average 

of 10.7. Staff Sergeant Desjardins gave Mr. de Silva a mark of 7, which is m n d  lowest and 

subtantially below the average. ?hpt rooring, for a candidate who otherwise placed a strong 

s e e d ,  is, at the wry least, questionable in light of the general pattern of his strong 

-8 

'Ibc gr imh weak perfonma on the written portion relates, in substantial part, 

to the bct that Staff Sergeant Desjardins gave him no polnts whatsoever for tbe fourth 

quation, relating to statistical conclusions from data on drinking driviag ofinces. In the 

Arbitrator's view the Staff Sergeant's willingness to be urbcmely huah in luru;nn tbe 



the rcladonsMp between kkrges* and " o f f e d .  Most hdamcataUy, whatewr the propcr 

dcfdtioP, the total &n reflected on the data chart dcsrty deacered, and did not 

made by the u m c r  rhcct, as dirtincr from comri&ns, is of itself highly quostionable. On I 
should have beta awarded on thh question to Mr. dc Si],va, if only for his ability to c o m d y  

hnw the upward and dclwmvard trend in the numbers, as itgauds males and females who 

W drink@ drjving "offenas", howcw that might k defined, In my vlnv the awarding 

of no mark whattotver, out of a possiilc seven marks, is questionable in the cicam@mcu, 

and the atwcmcnt of two mark for his prformanct on that question would not be 

tmmmmble, 

In the Arbitrator's view a rtill gnater concern arises from the handbg of the life 

eucpedenm portion of the evaluation by 'Staff Sergeant Desjardins. By his own admission, 

be d b c d  two marks to Mr. de S h a  for that heading based on his experience as Vice 

Rssident of the Police Amdatio~. No pints whats~cvtr wwc assigned to the g r i ~  for 

his updeaoe on the Toronto Mayor's Committee, his work as the Chiefs tiataon on 

amununhy nce r e ~ m  or hb fnvolvembent in the Accass to Services Implementation 

Committsc. By oontrast, Ms. Cadwd was awarded four points, twice as maay as the 

glcvor, witb two POLOO being messed for her expcricna as a mamkr of tbs a d h y  

polia urd tm points for her then aurcnt posidon of Mministratiw Cootdinator at 52 

Division. As noted abouc, Mr. Dear amceded that points should have becn nrwrPrrl for Mr. 
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de S W s  eJrpcrIence in such ePdeawwrr; as tbe Chief's Liaison Committee on Race 

Relations md the Mayof6 Committee. Weed, it two points had been u a s e d  for that 

unfortuaatcly worded fourlh qusstion of the written test, he would have #cored r total of 

853 marly as compared with the 855 m r d e d  for Ms. Cardwell. 

Thuc is more, however. No points were awarded by Staft Sergeant Dcrjardiar far 

the fact that earlier in his career, prior to his senk with the Assodation, Mr. de Silva 

spent rubstaattal periods as ccting paymaster for the entire police force. No good 

expianadon mu forthooming as to why that responsibility, which obvioudy conemd 

handbag delicate issues of bumsa reladons with respect to inquiries and protests about 

caluy a d  b&cs &vtd by cmployccs, was deemed to k worthy of no points Pndg tbe 

buding of lifi experience of direct or indirect value in the handing of the mpdsof s tDsb 

Equally questionabIe is the fact that Staff Sergeant Ddsjardins appeacs to have g h n  00 

nlw to the budget experience of Mr. de Suva in the preparation and administrption of tbe 

Whib counsel for the Association attacked tbe fact that Mr. & Sihg was nted lower 

tbrn Mr Qrdrvsll in the area of wbal oommuni~~tions, stressing in particular the aidc~a 

of Staff Sergeant Desjardlns that his accent wac held against him to some de- the 

Atbintor ir not persuaded that there war any dgnificant unfairness to Mr. de Silvr, 

notwithstanding it was doarty imicvant to makc mention of his accent. Mr. dc Snva is 



fn the result, however, tbc Arbitrator C £orccd to the condusion that the marksks 

assessed by Staft Sergeant Desjardins were, as a general matter, substantially lower for Mr. 

de SUva than for Ma Cardwcll, and that his tendency to mark barder than the othet 

paneUists was more pronounced as re@ Mr. de Silva, compared to all other candidates. 

Most rignificdatly, it appcan undeniable that a number of importent areas of prior life 

apedance were entirety @nod by the panel in attributing muks to the gtievor, notably 

his prior umrk as acting paymaster for the police force, his budget qerience in the Polia 

Assodation and the high profile liaison kotk he has done in community and rset ralations. 

I am Plso satisfied that there was quesdonable marking of at las t  one of the written 

qwrtim by Staff Sugeant Derjardins, as discusrad me. la the rcsylt, the pbssib1e 

addition of two, and perhaps as many as six, wks to Mr. de Silva's ucv-klrmmt would have 

p M  him Lo numcr(rJII equality, if not nrpsriority, to Ms. Cudweell. 

For the rtawnr to31cbcd upon above, 1 am not imp& witb the argumant of the 

Boud of ~~ that the diff-oc betwoen a saxe of 8U and 855 was, in the 

indicative that tbc twu candidates were not relatively equal. The open- 



Alttrnativcly, for the thsom related above, the Arbitrator muat amdudc tha!, 

h@y by mason of the assessment of Mr. & S h i  by Staff Sergeant Des#mW, both in 

nspcct of his intuvlns, and the factors df the written test and tbs education/cqmience of 

the candidates, the grinror was unduly deprived of marks whicb should kave been amassed 

eommittws with nhl& he was involved. The faiIurc to award my padmr whatsaver fbr the 

Oanada's ImJ.gert police form a matter well-reflected in the documentation before the 


